
  

United Way of Greater Los Angeles 2013 RFP  
FAQs 

 
GENERAL QUESTIONS 
 
Can our organization apply for all three action areas (Housing Stability, Educational 
Achievement and Financial Stability)? 
 
Yes, organizations are eligible to submit one proposal per action area. Given the limited 
funding available through this RFP, we encourage you to choose the strategy within 
each action area which supports your strongest programs. 
 
Can our organization submit one proposal for all the geographical areas we serve? 
 
Yes, one proposal per funding area may be submitted for all geographical areas served. 
 
Is the maximum requested amount of $75,000 for one year?  
 
Yes, up to $75,000 per year may be requested. 
 
If our organization applies for $75,000 per year, does United Way reserve the right to 
lower the approved amount? 
 
Yes, we will determine all final grant awards based upon the pool of funds available for 
each action area. If grant amounts are lowered, our staff will negotiate with grantees on 
a case-by-case basis appropriate revisions to the objectives and outcomes. 
 
What are you looking for besides the program aspects of the proposal?   
 
Aside from evaluating the proposed scope of work, we will review the overall financial 
health of the organization. We’ll also call other funders which support your work and 
ask about their experiences.   
 
If we are working with multiple organizations, do we have to send all of our MOUs 
with those organizations?  
 
No, please include MOUs only for those organizations that will serve as core partners in 
achieving your outcomes. 
 
Are Year 2 awards the same amount as Year 1 awards? 
 
Year 2 award amounts will depend on your performance relative to the scope of work 
AND total dollars raised by United Way. If additional funds are secured, we’ll review the 



  

opportunity to increase grant awards. If fewer dollars are raised, grant awards may be 
decreased.  
 
If our organization is not a 501(c)(3), are we eligible to apply?  
 
No. 
 
Our organization is an education foundation that supports school district projects. Are 
we eligible to apply?  
 
Yes, you are eligible as long as you are a 501(c)(3).  
 
Our organization is interested in submitting two applications for the same action area 
– one on behalf of our own organization and the other on behalf of a local initiative 
for which we are the designated lead agency. Are we able to submit two applications?  
 
Yes. 
 
What is the expected start date for RFP grants? 
 
July 1, 2013 is the start date with a 12-month contract running through June 30, 2014.   
 
 
HOUSING STABILITY 
 
Are all housing stability applicants required to serve chronically homeless people? 
 
No, only the Permanent Housing Creation and Operations funding area requires that 
recipients be chronically homeless.  
 
Do the tenants we work with have to be placed during the grant period? Our 
organization will finish construction on a project by 2015.  
 
Yes, tenants need to be placed some time during the 2013-14 grant year. If your tenant 
is expected to be placed by 2015, your proposal will be more competitive during the 
2014-15 grant cycle. 
 
Do tenants have to be placed by July 1st? 
 
Some programs may not technically start until August or September. For existing 
programs, we will ask you to report activities beginning July 1st.  
 
If we are serving fewer than 40 veterans, is our proposal still competitive? 
 



  

Yes, as long as you are serving between 1 and 40 veterans. 
 
Can I apply for Rapid Rehousing through United Way and then apply for Permanent 
Supportive Housing through the HFG Funders’ Collaborative? 
 
No. The Permanent Supportive Housing Creation and Operations funding area in the 
Funders’ Collaborative is part of the United Way RFP and therefore, applicants may only 
apply for one strategy. However, applicants are eligible to apply for Rapid Rehousing 
and other funding areas in the Funders’ Collaborative RFP (e.g., Funding Areas #2-4).  
 
Is there a current list of United Way partners posted online? 
 
Yes, all UWGLA and Home for Good partners are listed at www.unitedwayla.org. 
 
Permanent Supportive Housing (PSH) & Home for Good (HFG): 
 
How is PSH defined? 
 
As any housing arrangement where an individual stays as long as they want and has 
access to supportive services but is not mandated to participate.  
 
How is “unit” defined? Is PSH per individual or household? 
 
Unit is based on the number of households (e.g., 3 individuals in a single family home = 
3 households). 
 
For PSH, will you only support people who are newly placed or can you also support 
those who’ve already been placed? 
 
PSH grants are for 2 years and are calculated based on the following formula: first year 
grants are for newly placed chronically homeless persons at a maximum rate of $5,000 
per participant ($2,000 for move-in costs and $3,000 for supportive services); second 
year grants will support retention services for persons placed during the first year at a 
maximum of $3,000 per participant.  
 
Can we use grant funds to build our own building? 
 
Applicants must demonstrate access to permanent supportive housing units and 
capacity to provide supportive services for newly placed chronically homeless persons. 
Tenants must be placed by the end of the grant period (June 30, 2014). PSH developers 
should also review the California Community Foundation Innovations Grant (Funding 
Area #3) in the HFG Funders’ Collaborative RFP for capital assisted funding.  
 

http://www.unitedwayla.org/


  

If we are interested in applying for PSH funding, do we need to submit a proposal to 
United Way and a proposal to the Funders’ Collaborative? 
 
No, only one application is needed per organization as these are one in the same and 
will be evaluated by a single review panel. 
 
If we are interested in applying for funding through United Way’s RFP for Housing 
Stability (Permanent Supportive Housing) and the Home for Good RFP, do we need to 
submit two separate proposals? 
 
If only applying for Permanent Supportive Housing Creation and Operations (HFG 
Funding Area #1), only one application is needed per organization for both of these RFPs 
to avoid duplication. If applying for multiple areas under the HFG Funders’ Collaborative, 
applicants must complete one application for each funding area.   
 
Is Home for Good only for Permanent Supportive Housing? 
 
Yes, it’s only for PSH. Rapid Rehousing & Systems Change are solely UWGLA funded and 
those are $25,000 to $75,000 grants. 
 
Our organization has reviewed the RFP and we need clarification on the following 
statement regarding the budget narrative:  
 
“Summarize how the funds requested through this proposal will be spent to support 
the project design. Include a brief description of staff positions, program activities, 
purchase of special equipment or other unique features that will be supported through 
this grant request, if funded. Also, list other funding sources that are committed to this 
project and the amounts. If there is a current funding gap, please describe what other 
sources you are seeking to fill the gap.” 
 
Since this is a general operating support grant and may be used for any purpose, how 
can we be expected to say funds will be used for project-related expenses? Doesn’t 
that make it a restricted program grant?   
 
Generally, grant funds are meant to be used for operational expenses and are not 
program-restricted. However, funding for the United Way/HFG Permanent Supportive 
Housing Creation and Operations funding area is program-restricted as contributors 
would like to ensure that funds will be leveraged and the project is sustainable after the 
grant period ends.  
 
Home for Good (HFG): 
 
Are there opportunities to apply for more than $75,000 through the HFG Funders’ 
Collaborative? 



  

 
Yes, grants of up to $250,000 may be awarded depending on the specific funding area. 
UWGLA streamlined a portion of its funding through the Collaborative to increase 
availability for grantees focused on permanent supportive housing for the chronically 
homeless. Please refer to pages 7-21 of the Home For Good RFP for specific guidelines. 
 
Can we use funds to serve all homeless vets or only chronically homeless vets? 
 
For PSH, it is limited to only chronically homeless veterans. You can apply to Rapid 
Rehousing for non-chronic homeless veterans. 
 
Can we request more than $250,000 total if we have 50+ housing units available for 
lease up in 2013? (e.g., if we have 100 units available for homeless/chronically 
homeless vets, can we request a total of $500,000?)   
 
Funding decisions are based on a competitive review process which ensures 
geographical coverage, commitment to housing chronically homeless veterans and non-
veterans and considers the organization’s prior experience in housing/retaining tenants. 
Please note that PSH funding can only be used for units being filled with chronically 
homeless persons (including veterans), not non-chronic homeless veterans.  
 
 
EDUCATIONAL ACHIEVEMENT 
 
Would you consider funding a program on overall educational achievement? 
 
No, we focus specifically on Math and English Language Arts. 
 
Can we propose alternatives such as interim assessments to measure outcomes 
besides CST scores and grades?   
 
Only if these assessments have been tested and validated by the district.   
 
Does United Way fund afterschool programs serving students who are currently 
enrolled at Leadership Matters campuses?  
 
Yes, schools participating in the Leadership Matters program include Hollenbeck MS, 
Mt. Gleason MS, Northridge MS, Van Nuys MS, Daniel Webster MS, El Sereno MS and 
Irving MS. 
 
Can we include academic support in Math and English for 5th graders transitioning into 
the 6th grade?  
 
Yes. 



  

 
Our organization has partnered with a local middle school for ELT over the past two 
years. We recently discovered that another organization would also like to partner 
with them. Can two organizations have an RFP for ELT with the same school?  
 
We anticipate that multiple organizations will seek to support our partner middle 
schools and encourage everyone to apply regardless of another organization’s interest 
in supporting the same school.  
 
 
FINANCIAL STABILITY 
 
Middle Schools: 
 
Are elementary schools included in the target population? 
 
This RFP focuses on academically struggling middle schools or grades 6 through 8. 
 
Are K through 8 schools included in the target population? 
 
Yes, as long as they meet additional requirements set forth in the RFP. 
 
Once we identify an academically struggling middle school as defined in the RFP, how 
do we determine the parameters of its neighborhood? 
 
Proposals should include the name(s) of the specific middle school(s) impacted and 
where you will deliver services in relation to those school(s). 
    
Do we have to provide services at a school site? 
 
No; however, organizations with a presence at a targeted middle school may receive 
preference. 
 
Are asset-building services targeting middle school students eligible for funding? 
 
Not if services aren’t also provided to adults. This RFP is for asset-building services 
targeting parents/guardians of low-income children.  
 
If we are working with the city or a specific school, what should we submit? 
 
MOUs are preferred; however, letters of support from school principals or city 
managers will also be accepted.  
 
Veterans: 



  

  
Can requested funds go towards serving dishonorably discharged vets? 
 
Yes.  
 
As an award recipient, would our organization be responsible for outreach and 
marketing of our services to post-9/11 veterans? 
 
Yes. 
 
Our organization holds hiring events for veterans. Would this count towards the 
outcomes identified in the RFP? 
 
No, outcomes in this area are explicitly tied to new job placements for post-9/11 vets.    
 
Some veteran program placements depend on long-term training and would 
negatively skew in-progress outcomes. Would you still consider funding this type of 
program?   
 
The focus of this RFP is rapid employment for post-9/11 veterans and competitive 
proposals will specify a placement timeline and demonstrate the ability to meet annual 
outcomes.     
 
Our organization has never hosted a VITA event but would like to. Are we still eligible 
to apply? 
 
Yes, United Way can assist in facilitating a VITA event for your organization. 
 
Will you consider organizations that don’t exclusively serve veterans? 
 
Yes; however, applicants must demonstrate they have the capacity to outreach, place 
and provide retention services to post-9/11 veterans.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Financial Addendum: 
 
Our Finance Director has completed the Financial Addendum providing only the first 6 
months of “actual” figures for the 2013 Fiscal Year column. Is this the correct way to 
respond to the request or do we need to provide a full fiscal year projection for 2013? 
 
If you do not have a complete financial report for 2013, please use reports for FY 2012, 
2011 and 2010. 


